
 
AGENDA 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
5000 CLARK AVENUE 

LAKEWOOD, CALIFORNIA 
 

September 25, 2018 
 
 
 
RECEPTION:  Lakewood Celebrates . . .” 6:00 p.m. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 7:30 p.m. 
 
INVOCATION:  Ahmed Rafi, Member of the Lakewood Muslim Community 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Girl Scout Troop 4823 
 
ROLL CALL: Mayor Steve Croft 
 Vice Mayor Todd Rogers 
 Council Member Diane DuBois 
 Council Member Ron Piazza 
 Council Member Jeff Wood 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS AND PRESENTATIONS: 
Presentation by Emilio Sosa, Committee Chairperson, Lakewood Rotary Club Regarding Project 
Shepherd 
 
ROUTINE ITEMS: 
All items listed within this section of the agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one 
motion without separate discussion.  Any Member of Council may request an item be removed for 
individual discussion or further explanation.  All items removed shall be considered immediately 
following action on the remaining items. 
 
RI-1 MEETING MINUTES - Staff recommends City Council approve Minutes of the Meetings held 

July 10, and July 24, 2018 
 
RI-2 PERSONNEL TRANSACTIONS - Staff recommends City Council approve report of personnel 

transactions. 
 
RI-3 REGISTERS OF DEMANDS - Staff recommends City Council approve registers of demands. 
 
RI-4 CITY COUNCIL COMMITTEES’ ACTIVITIES - Staff recommends City Council approve report 

of City Council Committees’ activities. 
 
RI-5 MONTHLY REPORT OF INVESTMENT TRANSACTIONS - Staff recommends City Council 

approve monthly report of investment transactions for July 2018. 
 
 MONTHLY REPORT OF INVESTMENT TRANSACTIONS - Staff recommends City Council 

approve monthly report of investment transactions for August 2018. 
 



In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a qualified individual with a disability and need an 
accommodation to participate in the City Council meeting, please contact the City Clerk’s Office, 5050 Clark Avenue, Lakewood, 

CA, at 562/866-9771, ext. 2200; or at cityclerk@lakewoodcity.org at least 48 hours in advance to ensure that reasonable 
arrangements can be made to provide accessibility to the meeting. 

 
Agenda items are on file in the Office of the City Clerk, 5050 Clark Avenue, Lakewood, and are available for public review 

during regular business hours.  Any supplemental material distributed after the posting of the agenda will be made available for 
public inspection during normal business hours in the City Clerk’s Office.  For your convenience, the agenda and the supporting 

documents are available in an alternate format by request and are also posted on the City’s website at www.lakewoodcity.org 

City Council Agenda 
September 25, 2018 
Page 2 
 

 

ROUTINE ITEMS: - Continued 
RI-6 AGREEMENT WITH TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC. “MUNIS” FOR ACCOUNTING 

SOFTWARE LICENSES AND SUPPORT - Staff recommends City Council approve proposed 
agreement with Tyler Technologies, Inc. in the amount of $162,907.58. 

 
RI-7 RESOLUTION 2018-60; AUTHORIZING PARTICIPATION IN THE GATEWAY CITIES 

ENERGY LEADER PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM WITH SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON - 
Staff recommends City Council adopt proposed resolution. 

 
RI-8 RESOLUTION NO. 2018-61; AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 1862 PERTAINING TO RULES 

AND PROCEDURES FOR THE PROCEEDINGS OF THE CITY COUNCIL, AND FOR ITS 
OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES - Staff recommends City Council adopt proposed resolution. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
1.1 ORDINANCE NO. 2018-6; AMENDING THE LAKEWOOD MUNICIPAL CODE AND THE 

ZONING ORDINANCE REGARDING THE LOCATION, DESIGN AND OPERATION OF 
COMMERCIAL CARWASHES - Staff recommends City Council hold a public hearing and 
introduce proposed ordinance. 

 
1.2 ORDINANCE NO. 2018-7; AMENDING THE LAKEWOOD MUNICIPAL CODE AND THE 

ZONING ORDINANCE REGARDING THE SHORT-TERM RENTALS OF RESIDENTIAL 
PROPERTIES AND REQUIRING A BUSINESS LICENSE AND TRANSIENT OCCUPANCY 
TAX FOR SUCH SHORT-TERM RENTALS - Staff recommends City Council hold a public 
hearing and introduce proposed ordinance. 

 
LEGISLATION: 
2.1 ORDINANCE NO. 2018-8; AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

LAKEWOOD AMENDING THE MUNICIPAL CODE PERTAINING TO COMPENSATION OF 
MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL - Staff recommends City Council introduce proposed 
ordinance. 

 
AGENDA 

LAKEWOOD SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
1.  REGISTER OF DEMANDS - Staff recommends Successor Agency approve registers of demands. 

 
AGENDA 

LAKEWOOD HOUSING SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
1.  REGISTER OF DEMANDS - Staff recommends Housing Successor Agency approve registers of 
demands. 

 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 RI-1 

 Routine Item 1 – City Council Minutes 
 
 will be available prior to the meeting. 





RI-2 

  COUNCIL AGENDA 
  September 25, 2018 

 
 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT: Report of Personnel Transactions 
 

Effective 
Name Title  Schedule Date     

 
1.  FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES 

 
A. Appointments 
 Samantha Chambers Project Management Assistant 22/B 09/09/2018  
 
 Noe Garcia Water Utility Worker 12/A 09/09/2018 
     
B. Changes 
 None 
 
C. Separations 
 None 
 

2. PART-TIME EMPLOYEES 
 
A. Appointments 

None 
    

B. Changes  
Estrella Meza Community Services Leader IV B to 09/09/2018 
 Community Services Specialist B 
 

C. Separations  
None 
 
 

    Thaddeus McCormack 
   City Manager 





jmayberr
Typewritten Text
RI-3

















RI-4 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
September 25, 2018  

 
 
 
TO: The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT: Report of City Council Committees’ Activities  
 
 
INTRODUCTION 
A brief update is provided for City Council review on the activities of the following standing 
committee:  Public Safety Committee. 
 
STATEMENT OF FACT 
 
On September 6, the Public Safety Committee/License & Permit Hearing Board met and 
discussed: 
 
Crime Trend/Statistics 
Part 1 crime numbers were down in almost every category, including Grand Theft Autos being 
down 10%.  The Committee requested that staff develop a public awareness campaign geared 
towards informing people of the perils of social media/internet meet-ups and educating people on 
how to protect themselves from sexual assault.  
 
Part 1 crimes at Lakewood Mall were down 37% from January 1 to August 31 when compared to 
2017. The Committee commented on and complimented the effectiveness of the city’s Advanced 
Surveillance and Protection Plan (ASAP) cameras and other technologies in helping make the Mall 
a safe place to shop.  Staff intends to publish an article showing statistical data on the safety and 
security of the Lakewood Mall.   
 
Neighborhood Watch (NW) 
There was a NW meeting held in the eastern side of the city, and a group comprising seven NW 
groups also met at the Lakewood Youth Center.  Concerns and ideas raised by the groups included: 
neighborhood traffic safety, parent/guardian response in an active shooter incident, and illuminated 
crosswalks. 
 
Staff is working with the Public Information Office to create a “Next Door” page so that public 
safety information could be shared with residents as a sort of virtual Neighborhood Watch 
program. 
 
Staff has been attending NW meetings and contacting block captains to see if help is needed with 
their meetings.  The next NW seminar for block captains will likely be held in late October. 
 



Council Committees’ Activities 
September 25, 2018 
Page 2 

Paramount Boulevard Corridor 
The Committee discussed many issues in the Paramount Boulevard Corridor area, ranging from 
criminal activity to vagrancy to property maintenance issues.  Part 1 crimes in this area dropped 
since the previous meeting.  The city’s Special Assignment Officer team will continue to monitor 
the area.  Staff  noted that the property maintenance issues have been brought to the attention of 
Code Enforcement. 
 
Back To School Traffic 
Sheriff’s personnel reported that traffic deputies were monitoring the new Odyssey STEM 
Academy at arrival and dismissal times.  It appears that there are minimal issues attributable to 
Odyssey, but that there were citations issued to vehicles coming/going to/from Buena Vista school 
and drivers using Michelson Street as a drive through to other areas.  LASD will continue to 
monitor and enforce.   
 
City of Lakewood and “Crime Stoppers” Pilot Program 
Sheriff’s personnel reported that the first meeting for this program would be in a few weeks and 
that additional information will be available and provided soon. 
 
Massage Establishments 
Currently, staff is not regularly inspecting massage establishments, other than as a matter of course 
for the entitlement/permitting process and or in response to complaints. A Code Enforcement (CE) 
Officer is sent to establishments when a complaint is received.  If the complaint alleges illicit 
activity, or if the CE Officer observes suspicious activity, staff works with the Sheriff Department 
to investigate and proceed as appropriate.  In the future, staff will look into establishing an annual 
inspection protocol for massage businesses that would include annual random visits/checks by 
Code Enforcement in an effort to deter future code violations.  
 
Follow-Up from Previous Meetings 
Staff reported that there will be a meeting between the cities served by the Lakewood Sheriff’s 
Station and the City of Cerritos to discuss sharing information and the potential of greater 
collaboration and sharing of resources. 
 
Staff reported that changes to the Lakewood Municipal Code to allow the issuing of citations for 
panhandling/soliciting were being discussed. A recommendation on the subject may be made at a 
future meeting for the Committee’s consideration.  
 
Miscellaneous 
The Committee discussed frustration over shoplifting becoming such a common occurrence for 
local businesses in California, that crimes might go unreported, since criminals often flee before 
deputies are able to arrive.  They also discussed that some individuals have become aggressive or 
intimidated business owners to get their way on a refund for food or returned merchandise. The 
Committee recommended working with the Chamber of Commerce to organize a symposium 
between Sheriff’s personnel and local business owners to discuss do’s and don’ts in these types of 
situations.  



Council Committees’ Activities 
September 25, 2018 
Page 3 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended that the City Council receive and file this report.   
 
 
Thaddeus McCormack 
City Manager 





RI-5 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
   September 25, 2018 

 
TO:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT: Monthly Report of Investment Transactions – July 2018 
 
 
INTRODUCTION 
In accordance with California Government Code Section 53607, the City Council has delegated 
to the City Treasurer the responsibility to invest or to reinvest funds, or to sell or exchange 
securities so purchased.  The California Government Code Section 53607 requires that, if such 
responsibility has been delegated, then the Treasurer “shall make a monthly report of those 
transactions to the legislative body.”  In compliance with this requirement, the Monthly Report 
of Investment Transactions is being rendered to be received and filed. 
 
STATEMENT OF MONTHLY ACTIVITY 
 Date   Amount at Cost Vehicle Transaction 

7/01/2018  $             160.82 FNMA Interest 1.646% 
7/01/2018  $               91.70 FNMA Interest 1.785% 
7/01/2018  $               49.55 FNMA Interest 1.898% 
7/01/2018  $             771.33 FNMA Interest 3.560% 

7/01/2018  $             797.63 FNA Paydown 3.560% 

7/01/2018  $          1,483.34         FNMA Paydown 1.646% 
7/01/2018  $          4,050.79    FNMA Paydown 1.785% 

7/01/2018  $        18,618.04 FNMA  Paydown 1.898% 
7/02/2018  $               19.09 MMF Interest  
7/03/2018  $      450,000.00 LAIF Withdrawal   
7/08/2018  $             881.25 CORP Interest 2.350% 
7/10/2018  $          3,805.83 CD Interest 2.731% 
7/10/2018  $          6,889.31 CD Interest 1.890% 
7/11/2018  $        74,161.66 CORP Sell 0.875% 
7/11/2018  $        99,865.00 CORP Purchase 3.00% 
7/12/2018  $        76,185.91 LAIF Withdrawal   
7/12/2018  $   1,000,000.00 LAIF Withdrawal 
7/15/2018  $          4,278.50 CORP  Interest 2.450% 
7/18/2018  $   1,200,000.00 LAIF Withdrawal  
7/18/2018  $      508,806.60 NOTE Purchase 2.750%%  
7/18/2018  $          1,950.00 CORP Interest 1.100% 
7/18/2018  $          1,526.25 CORP Interest 1.850% 

7/19/2018  $          3,609.38 NOTE Interest 0.875% 

7/20/2018  $             828.75 CORP Interest 1.950% 
7/23/2018  $      900,000.00 LAIF Withdrawal 
7/23/2018  $          3,937.50 CORP  Interest 2.250% 
7/27/2018  $          2,318.75 CORP  Interest 2.650% 
7/30/2018  $          5,437.50 FNMA Interest 1.500% 
7/31/2018  $          2,031.25 TREAS  Interest 1.625% 



Council Agenda 
September 25, 2018 
Page 2 
 

 
7/31/2018  $          5,156.25 TREAS Interest 1.375% 
7/31/2018  $          8,750.00  TREAS Interest 1.250% 
7/31/2018  $             457.18 CAMP Interest 2.11% 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended that the City Council receive and file the Monthly Report of Investment 
Transactions rendered for the month of July 2018. 
 
 
Jose Gomez       Thaddeus McCormack 
Director of Finance & Administrative Services  City Manager 
 



COUNCIL AGENDA 
   September 25, 2018 

 
TO:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT: Monthly Report of Investment Transactions – August 2018 
 
 
INTRODUCTION 
In accordance with California Government Code Section 53607, the City Council has delegated 
to the City Treasurer the responsibility to invest or to reinvest funds, or to sell or exchange 
securities so purchased.  The California Government Code Section 53607 requires that, if such 
responsibility has been delegated, then the Treasurer “shall make a monthly report of those 
transactions to the legislative body.”  In compliance with this requirement, the Monthly Report 
of Investment Transactions is being rendered to be received and filed. 
 
STATEMENT OF MONTHLY ACTIVITY 
 Date   Amount at Cost Vehicle Transaction 

8/01/2018  $      550,000.00 CD Buy 
8/01/2018  $               24.58 MMF Interest 
8/01/2018  $             148.76 FNMA Interest 1.646% 
8/01/2018  $               20.10 FNMA Interest 1.898% 

8/01/2018  $             797.63 FNA Interest 3.560% 

8/01/2018  $             103.84         FNMA Interest 1.785% 
8/01/2018  $          7,428.88    FNA Paydown 3.56% 

8/01/2018  $        34,639.09 FNMA  Paydown 1.646% 
8/01/2018  $               28.61 FNMA Paydown 1.898% 
8/01/2018  $        21,283.47 FNMA Paydown 1.785% 
8/01/2018  $      199,800.79 CD Sell 1.890% 
8/01/2018  $      352,116.07 CD Sell 1.880% 
8/01/2018  $   1,400,000.00 LAIF Withdrawal 
8/02/2018  $          6,707.05 CD  Interest 1.840% 
8/02/2018  $          2,843.75 FNMA Interest 0.875%%  
8/04/2018  $          1,950.00 CORP Interest 1.100% 
8/06/2018  $          1,526.25 CORP Interest 1.850% 

8/07/2018  $          6,662.50 CD Interest 2.050% 

8/08/2018  $          1,265.00 CORP Interest 1.100% 
8/12/2018  $            651.46 CORP  Interest 2.650% 
8/14/2018  $          1,650.00 CORP  Interest 2.000% 
8/17/2018  $          2,275.00 CORP Interest 2.600% 
8/20/2018  $          9,750.44 CD  Interest 2.720% 
8/28/2018  $          4,000.00 FNMA Interest 1.000% 
8/28/2018  $          3,375.00  FNMA Interest 1.500% 
8/28/2018  $          6,000.00 FNMA Interest 1.000% 
8/31/2018  $          3,953.13 TREAS Interest 1.375% 

8/31/2018  $               79.76 CAMP Interest 2.12% 
 



Council Agenda 
September 25, 2018 
Page 2 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended that the City Council receive and file the Monthly Report of Investment 
Transactions rendered for the month of August 2018. 
 
 
Jose Gomez       Thaddeus McCormack 
Director of Finance & Administrative Services  City Manager 
 





RI-6 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
      September 25, 2018 

 
 
TO: The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT: Agreement with Tyler Technologies Inc. for “MUNIS” Accounting Software 

Licenses and Support 
 
INTRODUCTION 
Annually the City contracts with Tyler Technologies (Tyler) for accounting software licensing and 
support for a number of program modules, disaster recovery, and off-site support services 
 
STATEMENT OF FACT 
Although Tyler’s standard support fees increase annually by five percent, Staff requested and they 
agreed to keep their fees unchanged from the prior year for all support services, except one 
(disaster recovery).  Specifically, the agreement includes the following: 
 

 

Actual       
FY 2017-18

% Increase 
over Prior 
Payment

Proposed    
FY 2018-19

Support and Update Licensing
ACCTG/GEN LEDGER/BUDGET/ACCTS PAYABLE $26,978.73 0% $26,978.73
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE $7,357.50 0% $7,357.50
BUSINESS LICENSE $6,744.06 0% $6,744.06
CONTRACT MANAGEMENT $3,507.72 0% $3,507.72
GENERAL BILLING $3,433.25 0% $3,433.25
HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT $2,821.08 0% $2,821.08
INVENTORY $8,093.38 0% $8,093.38
CRYSTAL REPORTS $6,812.20 0% $6,812.20
MUNIS OFFICE $5,396.00 0% $5,396.00
PAYROLL $4,046.69 0% $4,046.69
PROJECT ACCOUNTING $5,934.98 0% $5,934.98
PURCHASE ORDER $8,093.38 0% $8,093.38
REQUISITIONS $5,664.86 0% $5,664.86
UTILITY BILLING $2,500.00 0% $2,500.00
FORM PROCESSING SUPPORT $3,790.56 0% $3,790.56
ROLE TAILORED DASHBOARD $1,720.56 0% $1,720.56

Other Applications & Services
TYLER UNLIMITED UPGRADE MAINTENANCE $2,700.00 0% $2,700.00
OFFSITE DATABASE ADMIN $30,000.00 0% $30,000.00
TYLER DISASTER RECOVERY $26,012.03 5% $27,312.63

$161,606.98 $162,907.58  
  



Council Agenda Report 
Page 2 
 
Although the City has transitioned to the FATHOM System for water utility billing, it is proposed 
that the module be renewed for the year (at half the regular cost) so that Staff maintain access to 
historical customer information in the utility module. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
It is respectfully recommended that the City Council approve the Agreement with Tyler 
Technologies, Inc. in the amount of $162,907.58 for accounting software licensing and support. 
 
 
Jose Gomez  Thaddeus McCormack 
Director of Finance & Administrative Services City Manager 
 





RI-7 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
September 25, 2018 

 
 
 
TO:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT: Gateway Cities Energy Leader Partnership 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The Gateway Cities Energy Leader Partnership is an energy efficiency program administered by 
Southern California Edison (SCE) and Southern California Gas Company (SCGC).  The City has 
been a participant for the last several years.  On October 13, 2015, the City Council approved a 
resolution authorizing the City to participate in the energy leadership partnership with SCE. On 
June 28, 2016, the City Council authorized an agreement with SCGC. 
 
STATEMENT OF FACTS 
By entering into the partnership, cities receive various benefits such as funding for direct 
implementation activities, no-cost third party audits at selected facilities, one-on-one technical 
support, strategic planning support on energy efficiency and sustainability, and educational 
outreach materials for the community.  
 
Since 2015, the City of Lakewood has been increasing its participation level from Value level, to 
Silver, Gold, and will attain Platinum status on September 30, 2018. The partnership offers 
increased incentives as member cities move progressively up the tier levels. The City has 
received assistance on several projects such as the energy action plan, water well overhauls, 
community outreach events, and LED street lights. In May 2017, the City received a check 
amounting to $712,931, which is a rebate for the LED street light project. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended that the City Council approve the proposed resolution authorizing the City to 
continue participating in the Gateway Cities Energy Leader Partnership with Southern California 
Edison and the Southern California Gas Company. 
 
 
Jose Gomez       Thaddeus McCormack 
Director of Finance and Administrative Services  City Manager 



RESOLUTION 2018-60 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD DECLARING 
SUPPORT FOR AN ENERGY PARTNERSHIP BETWEEN 
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY (SCE) AND 
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS COMPANY (SCGC) TO BE 
KNOWN AS “ENERGY LEADER PARTNERSHIP” 

 
 WHEREAS, the Energy Leader Partnership (ELP) supports “energy efficiency” initiatives, 
policies, and construction standards in order to ensure that our communities follow and encourage 
sustainable practices and  
 
 WHEREAS, local demand for electricity has grown, and it is expected that demand for 
electricity will continue to grow in the near future to support a growing population and economy; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, residents and businesses spend significant amounts for energy, it makes 
economic sense and good public policy to encourage energy efficiency in the City of Lakewood 
and our community; and 
 
 WHEREAS, energy efficiency programs enhance our environment by improving air 
quality, reducing greenhouse gases and other pollution, and conserving natural resources; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is vital for our community to keep spending locally and to encourage 
innovations in the way we behave, build, and incorporate energy into our everyday business and 
personal lives; and 
 
 WHEREAS, there is a growing movement within California communities and businesses 
to improve everyday practices and create more sustainable and “greener” cities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Lakewood seeks to promote innovative methods and technologies 
in the design and construction of new residential and commercial buildings within the City of 
Lakewood in order to bring energy and natural resource consumption in line with our sustainability 
goals. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Energy Partnership brings together the City of Lakewood, SCE, SCGC, 
and the Energy Partnership member agencies in a cooperative program to promote energy 
efficiency regional sustainability goals, and collaboration. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD DOES 
RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
  



Resolution No. 2018-60 
Page 2 

 

 Section 1. That the above recitations are true and correct. 
 
 Section 2. That the City of Lakewood supports a commitment to sustainable practices 
through energy efficiency, and will provide leadership and guidance in promoting, facilitating, and 
instituting such practices in the region. 
 
 Section 3. That the City of Lakewood supports and endorses the ELP an effective 
method to help meet long-term regional economic and environmental goals. 
 
 Section 4. That the City of Lakewood will name one or more individuals to the 
partnership working group that will review progress regularly with SCE and SCGC. 
 
 Section 5. That the City of Lakewood with the assistance of SCE and SCGC, will 
identify and support implementing the suite of programs and projects within the City of Lakewood 
municipal facility and community energy efficiency and sustainability goals. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED ON THIS 25TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2018. 
 
 
 

______________________________ 
 Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
City Clerk 
 





RI-8 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-61 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LAKEWOOD AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 1862 
PERTAINING TO RULES AND PROCEDURES FOR 
PROCEEDINGS OF THE CITY COUNCIL, AND FOR ITS 
OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES 

 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD DOES RESOLVE AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1. Section 3, pertaining to the City Council policy for reimbursement for 
expenses is hereby amended by amending subparagraph (5) to read as follows: 
 
 "(5) The City Council finds and determines that members of the City Council in 

performing their duties, including the use of their own automobile in the 
performance of official City business, and in attending local events and functions, 
expend in excess of $500 per month, and that the sum of $500 per month should 
be allocated to each member of the City Council towards reimbursement of said 
actual and necessary expenditures.  Effective on the first day of the month 
following adoption of this amendment there shall be paid to each member of the 
City Council, in addition to other compensation authorized by law, an automobile 
allowance of $500 per month as reimbursement for the use of their vehicle in 
performance of City functions. 

 
 SECTION 2. Resolution No. 2005-39 on the same subject is hereby repealed. 
 
 SECTION 3. This resolution shall be effective October 1, 2018. 
 
 ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 25th day of September, 2018. 
 
 
 
               
         Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
       
City Clerk 
 





 



1.1 

 COUNCIL AGENDA 
 September 25, 2018 
 
 
 
TO:  Honorable Mayor and members of the City Council 
 
SUBJECT: Proposed ordinance to establish revised standards for Commercial Carwashes  
 
INTRODUCTION  
The purpose of this Ordinance is to establish additional locational criteria, development standards, 
and operational guidelines pertaining to commercial carwashes.  Recently during consideration 
and review of proposed commercial carwashes, concerns have been raised regarding the adequacy 
of carwash regulations pertaining to operational noise and traffic generation in close proximity to 
residential areas.   
 
STATEMENT OF FACTS  
This Ordinance will allow new commercial carwashes to be established only in the C-4, M-1, and 
M-2 zones, subject to a conditional use permit (CUP).  The CUP shall consider and mitigate any 
identified impacts to adjacent properties, including those from noise, light, glare, vibration, 
parking, circulation and appropriate stacking distance for access lanes.  This Ordinance establishes 
standards for parking spaces at a new carwash facility.  New commercial carwashes shall no longer 
be allowed to be established in the C-1 or C-3 zones.  This applies to all types of carwashes 
including self-serve, full service, hand wash, detailing and those constructed in conjunction with 
a service station.  Any carwash that was approved prior to, and that approval was still valid on the 
effective date of this Ordinance, shall remain as a fully authorized land use.  Existing carwashes 
shall be allowed to submit amendments to previously approved conditional use permits to allow 
modifications that will be subject to the review and discretion of the Planning and Environment 
Commission.  The proposed ordinance establishes location and development standards for 
commercial carwashes, as follows: 

 New carwash facilities are allowed only in the C-4, M-1 and M-2 zones.  
 New carwash facilities are required to have parking spaces as follows: 
 Self- serve carwashes shall have a minimum of three parking spaces. 
 Full-serve carwashes shall have a minimum of ten parking spaces. 
 Carwashes that offer both full-serve and self-serve options shall have a 

minimum of ten parking spaces. 
 There shall be one parking space per employee on the largest shift. 
 There shall be one parking space for each 250 square feet of gross floor 

area devoted to office and/or retail land uses. 
 Vacuum and detailing stations shall not be counted towards required 

parking spaces. 
 Existing carwashes will continue as approved valid land uses that may be 

modified with a revision to their existing conditional use permit (CUP) 
approval. 



Proposed Ordinance – Commercial Carwashes 
September 25, 2018 
Page 2 
 
CEQA 
The proposed ordinance is exempt from CEQA pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 
15061(b)(3), which is the general rule that CEQA applies only to projects which have the potential 
for causing a significant effect on the environment and CEQA does not apply where it can be seen 
with certainty that there is no possibility that the activity may have a significant effect on the 
environment.  This ordinance has no impact on the physical environment as it will only modify 
administrative procedures and not result in any changes to the physical environment. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
Pursuant to Section 9422 of the Lakewood Municipal Code and State Law, notice of the public 
hearing for this amendment was posted on the City’s webpage on September 14, 2018 posted in 
three public places on and published in the Press Telegram on September 14,, 2018 pursuant to 
Section 9422, et seq., of the Lakewood Municipal Code and State Law. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On September 6, 2018, the Planning and Environment Commission adopted Resolution 27-2018 
recommending that the City Council adopt the proposed ordinance.  Staff recommends that the 
City Council introduce the proposed ordinance and adopt the related Categorical Exemption. 
 
 
Sonia Dias Southwell, AICP     Thaddeus McCormack 
Director of Community Development  City Manager 







36
00

IN
DU

ST
RY

  A
VE

PIX
IE

  A
VE

KESSLER  RD

COVER  ST

PA
RA

MO
UN

T  
  B

LV
D

2500

MADISON
ELEMENTARY

SCHOOL

DE
EB

OY
AR

  A
VE

VA
NG

OL
D 

 AV
E

BOMBERRY  ST

PIX
IE

  A
VE

PIX
IE

  A
VE

MA
YB

AN
K  

AV
E

WARWOOD  RD

NE
LS

ON
BA

RK

MA
YB

AN
K  

AV
E

GREENMEADOW  RD

FLANGEL  ST

2700

WARWOOD  RD

FRECKLES  RD

VILLAGE  RD

2500

BR
OC

K  
AV

E

OP
ISP

O 
 A

VE

OB
ISP

O 
 A

VE

LE
VE

LS
ID

E  
AV

E

PARKVIEW  DR

BOUTON  DRCOUNTRY CLUB  DR

CARSON    ST

FAIRMAN  ST
4100

5500 HARVEY  WAY 6200

LONGWORTH  AVE

LONGWORTH  AVE

43
00

STEVELY  AVE

216TH  ST

60
00

SAN  GABRIEL  RIVER  FWY  (605)

SAN  GABRIEL  RIVER  FWY  (605)

VIL
LA

GE GREEN

SOUTH    ST

WALCROFT  ST

MAE BOYAR
PARK

SEABORN  ST

CH
ER

RY
    

AV
E

4300

KIMA  CT

4700 ASHWORTH  ST

IBB
ET

SO
N

AV
E

AM
OS

  A
VE

GR
ID

LE
Y  

RD

ALLINGTON  ST

BO
NF

AIR
  A

VE

LA
KE

W
OO

D 
  B

LV
D

CARTAGENA  ST

44
00

3900

FL
EE

TH
AV

EN
RD

MANOR  DR

PARKVIEW  DR

WA
TS

ON
 PL

AZ
A  

DR

CLUBHOUSE  DR

FAIRWAY  DR

212TH  ST

CH
ER

RY
    

AV
E

CENTRALIA  ST

CO
YO

TE
    

CR
EE

K

CO
YO

TE
    

CR
EE

K

SAN
GABRIEL

RIVER

LA
KEWOOD

DR

WO
OD

RU
FF

    
AV

E

ST. JOSEPH'S
HIGH SCHOOL
(PAROCHIAL)

MAYFAIR
PARK

SOUTH    ST

ST PANCRATIUS  PL

58
00

PEPPERWOOD

4300 5600

MONTAIR 

EDGEFIELD  ST

6400

CA
RF

AX
  A

VE

DASHWOOD  ST

3500

CAMERINO  ST

4300

DANELAND  ST

5100

53
00

5400

AU
TR

Y  
AV

E

5900

DANELAND  ST

CAPETOWN  ST

47
00

ARBOR  RD

NO
RW

AL
K 

   B
LV

D

PI
ON

EE
R 

   B
LV

D

DEL AMO    BLVD

SU
NF

IE
LD

  A
VE

SOUTH    ST

NYE
LIBRARY

11600
41

00
43

00

MA
RB

ER
  A

VE

5700

MA
RW

IC
K  

AV
E

SE
BR

EN
  A

VE

SA
N 

AN
SE

LIN
E  

AV
E

OC
AN

A  
AV

E

41
00

TILBURY  ST

RAVIA  ST

LA
DO

GA
  A

VE

KN
OX

VIL
LE

  A
VE

JO
SIE

  A
VE

6700

45
00

CA
NE

HI
LL

  A
VE

SN
OW

DE
N 

 AV
E

MC
 N

AB
  A

VE

CO
NQ

UI
ST

A  
AV

E

FA
US

T  
AV

E

GREENTOP  ST

GALLUP  ST

45
00

FAIRMAN  ST

GREENMEADOW  RD

VILLAGE  RD

FRECKLES  RD

WARWOOD  RD

GO
ND

AR
  A

VE

CARSON    ST

NI
PO

MO
  A

VE

OS
TR

OM
  A

VE

MO
NO

GR
AM

  A
VE

FAIRMAN  ST

FAIRMAN  ST

4400

JOHANNA  

2000 MARKET  ST

OB
ISP

O 
 A

VE

49
00MI

NT
UR

N 
 AV

E

OL
IVA

  A
VE

CL
AR

K 
   A

VE

PE
PP

ER
WO

OD

DEL HOLLOW  ST

2700

SILVA  ST

3500

SIMON
BOLIVAR

PARK

4300

SILVA  ST

5100

FID
LE

R 
 AV

E

5300

ADENMOOR 

6200

HEDDA  ST

WATER YARD
(PLANT #4)

SH
AD

EW
AY

  R
D

QUIGLEY  AVE

6900

PE
TA

LU
MA

  A
VE

SCHROLL  ST

MONROE
ELEMENTARY

SCHOOL

STEVELY  AVE

STUDEBAKER  RD SEABORN  AVE

SY
LV

AN
WO

OD

HARVEST 

214TH  ST

11300

CENTRALIA  ST

ALBURTIS 

AR
LIN

E 
 AV

E

11700

HASTON  PL

215TH  STSE
EL

EY

BLOOMFIELD
PARK

LAKEWOOD
EQUESTRIAN

CENTER

NE
CT

AR
  A

VE

11400

RO
SE

TO
N

AV
E

GRADWELL  ST

213TH  ST

GR
ID

LE
Y  

RD

PE
PP

ER
WO

OD
  A

VE HA
ZE

LB
RO

OK
  A

VE

D  ST

C  ST

HA
ZE

LB
RO

OK
  A

VE

A  ST

B  ST

53
00

FA
CU

LT
Y  

AV
E

GR
AY

WO
OD

  A
VE

4700

WH
ITE

WO
OD

  A
VE

53
00

PE
AR

CE
  A

VE

LO
RE

LE
I  A

VE

HE
RS

HO
LT

  A
VE

53
00

CANDLEWOOD  ST

JOSE
SAN MARTIN

PARK

CENTRALIA  ST

ALBURY 

6400

TURNERGROVE  DR

20300

11800

TH
OR

NL
AK

E 
 AV

E

12600

CA
LL

AW
AY

  A
VE

21
00

0

211TH  ST

211TH  ST

DEL AMO    BLVD

CARSON    ST

CITY
YARD

212TH  ST

NECTAR  AVE

215TH  ST

VIO
LE

TA
  A

VE

SE
IN

E  
AV

E

EL
AIN

E  
AV

E

HA
ST

ON
 

SE
EL

EY
 

MASSINGER  ST

GRADWELL  ST

WA
RD

HA
M 

 AV
E

HA
WA

IIA
N 

 A
VE

VE
RN

E  
AV

E

TILBURY  ST

FARLOW  ST

WA
RD

HA
M 

215TH  STHA
WA

IIA
N

VE
RN

E

21
40

0

CL
AR

ET
TA

  A
VE

12200

HO
RS

T  
AV

E

MELBOURNE
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

BE
LS

HI
RE

  A
VE

CO
RT

NE
R 

 A
VE

SE
IN

E  
AV

E

WILLOW
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

NE
CT

AR
  A

VE

PI
ON

EE
R 

   B
LV

D

AD
EN

MO
OR

  A
VE

CANDLEWOOD  ST

TURNERGROVE  DR
EBERLE  ST

DEL AMO    BLVD

21
00

0

1200011400

216TH  ST

214TH  ST

215TH  ST

DA
RT

MO
OR

  A
VE

206TH  ST

DA
GW

OO
D 

 AV
E

212TH ST

GRADWELL ST

ROCKWALLDALAMAN

12700

21
50

0

RO
SE

TO
N 

 A
VE

CIVIC
CENTER

BURNS
CENTER

WI
LD

ER
  A

VE

12600

ARBOR  RD

50
00

GREENTOP  ST

ALLRED  ST

DEERFORD  ST

VA
NG

OL
D 

 AV
E

LOOMIS  ST

2500

FRANKEL  ST FRANKEL  ST

ELKPORT  ST

FAIRMAN  ST

HA
YT

ER
  A

VE

CA
ST

AN
A  

AV
E

DEERFORD  ST

BRENDA 

DE
EB

OY
AR

  A
VE

MA
YB

AN
K 

DEL AMO    BLVD

46
00

LE
VE

LS
ID

E  
AV

E

470
0

DO
WN

EY
  A

VE

CASTANA

LA
KE

W
OO

D 
   B

LV
D

DEL AMO    BLVD

ELSA  ST

NIXON  ST

EL
AIN

E  
AV

E

211TH  ST

6300

HA
CK

ET
T  

AV
E

6100

ELKPORT  ST

41
00

PIX
IE

  A
VE AN

NA
POLIS

RD

41
00

CH
AT

W
IN

  A
VE

6000

LO
MI

NA
  A

VE

11800

12400

ASHWORTH  ST

EL
Y

AV
E

21
50

0

20
80

0

WEINGART
SENIOR
CENTER

FSPLANT #22

FS

FS

SANDWOOD  ST

48
00

PIX
IE

  A
VE

MA
YB

AN
K  

AV
E

CENTRALIA  ST

49
00

46
00

SANDWOOD  ST

ARBOR  RD

DEERFORD  ST

CENTRALIA  ST

FAIRMAN  ST

DOWNEY  AVE

CO
KE

  A
VE

ELSA  ST

CA
ST

AN
A 

 AV
E

OL
IVA

  A
VE

450
0

45
00

HOOVER
MIDDLE SCHOOL

PIM
EN

TA
  A

VE

44
00

CO
LD

BR
OO

K  
AV

E

DU
NR

OB
IN

  A
VE

EA
ST

BR
OO

K 
 AV

E

OC
AN

A  
AV

E

HA
YT

ER
  A

VE

DEL AMO    BLVD

ALLRED  ST

SIL
VA

  S
T

DE
EB

OY
AR

 AV
E

PA
RA

MO
UN

T  
  B

LV
D

OP
ISP

O 
 A

VE

TURNERGROVE  DR

SAN  GABRIEL  RIVER

HARVEST  AVE

41
00

HA
CK

ET
 AV

E

IR
OQ

UO
IS 

 AV
E

4100

QUIGLEY  AVE

3900

5100 5500

REVA  ST

62
00

ALLINGTON  ST

HEDDA  HEDDA  ST 4300

60
00

5100

60
00

5400HEDDA  ST

5500

HEDDA     ST

REVA  

5000

ASHWORTH  ST

DO
W

NE
Y 

 A
VE

CENTRALIA  ST

HARVEST

11500

20
00

0

ST. TIMOTHY
ELEMENTARY

SCHOOL

49
00

AL
BU

RY
  A

VE

RA
DN

OR
  A

VE

LO
MI

NA
  A

VE

OC
AN

A  
AV

E

EA
ST

BR
OO

K 
 AV

E

5700

SIL
VA

  S
T

KN
OX

VIL
LE

  A
VE

LA
DO

GA
  A

VE

SANDWOOD  ST

LOOMIS  ST

DEERFORD  ST

SUGARWOOD  ST

HENRILEE  ST

MC
 N

AB
  A

VE

SN
OW

DE
N 

 AV
E

CA
NE

HI
LL

  A
VE

CA
RF

AX
  A

VE

FA
US

T  
AV

E

HENRILEE  ST

TANGLEWOOD  ST

49
00MC

NA
B 

 AV
E

6600

ARBOR  RD

WO
OD

RU
FF

    
AV

E

GO
ND

AR
  A

VE

45
00

BR
IER

CR
ES

T  
AV

E

47
00

LO
MI

NA
  A

VE

RA
DN

OR
  A

VE

AL
BU

RY
  A

VE

LAKEWOOD
HIGH SCHOOL

DEL AMO    BLVD

PE
AR

CE
  A

VE

LO
RE

LE
I  A

VE

HE
RS

HO
LT

 AV
E

AU
TR

Y  
AV

E

DU
NR

OB
IN

  A
VE

BR
IER

CR
ES

T  
AV

E

CO
LD

BR
OO

K  
AV

E

CI
VIC

 C
EN

TE
R 

WY

49
00

PR
EM

IER
E 

 AV
E

WOLFE  ST

3500 5100 5500

5800

MCAULEY  ST
5900 6100

MICHELSON  ST

56
00

3500

5500

MO
NO

GR
AM

  A
VE

NI
PO

MO
  A

VE

OS
TR

OM
  A

VE

PE
TA

LU
MA

  A
VE

SH
AD

EW
AY

  R
D

PE
TA

LU
MA

SHADEWAY

CLEMATIS  

LOOMIS

11000

OS
TR

OM
 

SYLVANWOOD  AVE

LONGWORTH  AVENI
PO

MO
 

STORK

HORNET  PL
WEST SAN GABRIEL RIVER

PARKWAY NATURE TRAIL

TANGENT  LN

HENRILEE  ST

TANGLEWOOD

SEABORN  ST

LEMMING  ST

GLORYWHITE  ST

KE
N  

209TH  ST

20
30

0

HA
WA

IIA
N 

 A
VE

WA
RD

HA
M 

 AV
E

WALCROFT  ST

CHADWELL  ST

WALCROFT  ST

LAKEWOOD COUNTRY CLUB

WO
OD

RU
FF

    
AV

E

JOSE DEL VALLE
PARK

3900

56
00

56
00 56

00

4300

55
00

4700

5200

PE
TA

LU
MA

  

MC MANUS  ST

STUDEBAKER RD

VENDALE
DR

11600

DARTMOOR

213TH ST

LAKEWOOD REGIONAL
MEDICAL CENTER

CHADWELL  ST

LEMMING

RENVILLE  ST

206TH  ST

STILLMAN  ST

CHADWELL  ST

LEMMING  ST

WALCROFT  ST

209TH  ST

ELVINS  ST

RENVILLE  

JE
RS

EY
  A

VE

206TH  ST

207TH  ST 207TH  ST

208TH  ST

WALCROFT  ST

209TH  ST

STANGATE 

GLORIA 

20
30

0

AR
LIN

E 
 AV

E

AL
BU

RT
IS 

 AV
E

205TH  ST

206TH  ST

CL
AR

KD
AL

E  
AV

E

205TH  ST

ELVINS  ST

20
30

0

ARBOR  RD

JO
SIE

  A
VE

IR
OQ

UO
IS 

 AV
E

CO
NQ

UI
ST

A  
AV

E

PA
LO

  V
ER

DE
    

AV
E

HARVEY  WAY

4200

7000

PI
ON

EE
R 

   B
LV

D

AL
BU

RT
IS

212TH  ST

CL
AR

ET
TA

   A
VE

11900

WI
NK

LE
R 

 AV
E

IR
OQ

UO
IS

20
30

0

12000 12200

20
70

0

20
70

0

NECTAR

RO
SE

TO
N 

 A
VE

VIO
LE

TA
  A

VE

SE
IN

E  
AV

E

DE
VIL

IN
  A

VE

206TH  ST

FL
OR

CR
AF

T

LEMMING  ST

IBE
X  

AV
E

208TH  ST

ELVINS  ST

PALMS PARK

HA
WA

IIA
N 

 A
VE

EL
Y  

AV
E

VE
RN

E  
AV

E

TH
OR

NL
AK

E 
 AV

E

RENVILLE  ST

BE
LS

HI
RE

  A
VE

RENVILLE  

STILLMAN  ST

206TH  ST

VANDEMERE  ST

RENVILLE  ST

WILKES

WI
LD

ER
  A

VE

20
40

0

ELVINS

209TH  ST
HORST

5500MICHELSON  ST 5400

BIGELOW  ST

CANDOR  

MICHELSON  ST

54
00

BIGELOW  ST

53
00

2700

CO
KE

  A
VE

GR
AY

WO
OD

 

4700

MO
NT

AI
R 

AV
E

CARDALE  ST

12400

12400

LEMMING ST

214TH ST

11600

CHADWELL    ST

DANELAND  ST

DOLLAR  ST

2900

240
0 HARDWICK  ST

EL
DE

RH
AL

L  
AV

E

CHERRY COVE
PARK

TERN  BAY  LN

CANDLEWOOD    ST

YEARLING  ST

ECKLESON  ST

49
00

ECKLESON  ST

SILVA  ST

DE
EB

OY
AR

  A
VE

BISCAILUZ
PARKPA

RK
  D

R

SPARROW  HILL

ME
AD

OW
 W

OO
D 

 AV
E

DASHWOOD  ST

DEL BAY  ST

TRI BAY CIR

52
00

LE
VE

LS
ID

E  
AV

E

KL
ON

DI
KE

  A
VE

BIX
LE

R 
 AV

E

FID
LE

R 
 AV

E

PR
EM

IER
E 

 AV
E

MO
NT

AI
R 

 AV
E

HARDWICK  ST

KN
OX

VI
LL

E
AV

E

53
00

6400

CARDALE  ST

51
00

DENMEAD  ST

51
00

51
00

2700

51
00

3100

51
00

43004000 HARDWICK  ST

5200 5400

610051
00

HARDWICK  ST 5500

51
00

600059005800 HARDWICK  ST

CA
ST

AN
A 

 AV
E

OL
IVA

  A
VE

PIM
EN

TA
  A

VE

53
00

BREAN  ST

CH
AM

BE
RS

 

TU
RN

ER
  C

T

WR
EN

CH
  C

T

VAN NOSTRAN  DR

GOREN 

RY
AN

 

MI
NT

UR
N 

 AV
E

VE
RD

UR
A  

AV
E

BA
RL

IN
  A

VE

CO
KE

  A
VE

ANDAZOLA

VE
RD

UR
A  

AV
E

CAPETOWN  ST

3900

PE
PP

ER
WO

OD
  A

VE

BO
NF

AIR
  A

VE

BL
AC

KT
HO

RN
E  

AV
E

HA
ZE

LB
RO

OK
  A

VE

GR
AY

WO
OD

 AV
E

SU
NF

IE
LD

  A
VE

FA
CU

LT
Y

PE
NN

SW
OO

D

51
00

51
00PA

RA
MO

UN
T  

  B
LV

D

CLEVELAND
ELEMENTARY

SCHOOL

6400

DANELAND

CL
AIR

 D
EL

49
00

2400

49
00 CO

KE
  A

VE

4000

FA
CU

LT
Y  

AV
E

49
00

5500 5900

MAM
IE 

 AV
E

46
00

CENTRALIA  

47
00

3200

LOOMIS  ST

3600

PIM
EN

TA
  A

VE

CENTRALIA  ST

CENTRALIA  ST 5700

AD
EN

MO
OR

  A
VE

5500 5900

45
00 6900

6700

5700

49
00

OCANA  AVE

5700

CAPETOWN  ST

CANDOR ST

SILVA  ST

CAMERINO  ST

ECKLESON  ST

EBERLE  ST

YEARLING  ST

OC
AN

A  
AV

E

DENMEAD  ST

DASHWOOD  ST

6200

SP
AH

N 

CARFAX  AVE

ST
EV

EL
Y

AV
E

DENMEAD  ST

MA
YB

AN
K  

AV
E

YEARLING  ST

HARDWICK  ST

DASHWOOD  ST

CANDLEWOOD    ST

KN
OX

VIL
LE

  A
VE

STEVELY  AVE

WI
LD

ER
  A

VE

CA
LL

AW
AY

  A
VE

BL
OO

MF
IE

LD
    

AV
E

STILLMAN  ST

20
60

0

VANDEMERE  ST

RENVILLE  ST

LEMMING  ST

ARTESIA
HIGH SCHOOL

5900

47
00

6200 6400 6500

FLANGEL

43
00

HARVEY  WAY

LE
VE

LS
ID

E  
AV

E

DANELAND  ST

LARK  BAY  LN RA
CH

EL
  A

VE 6700

CA
RF

AX
  A

VE

CA
NE

HI
LL

  A
VEGO

ND
AR

  A
VE

CARDALE  ST

53
00

CANDOR  ST

IR
OQ

UI
S 

 AV
E

JO
SIE

  A
VE

CANDOR  ST

DENMEAD  ST

JO
SI

E

IR
OQ

UO
IS 

 AV
E

YEARLING  ST

CANDLEVERDE
PARK

DENMEAD  

50
00

HARDWICK
DENMEAD  ST

DOLLAR  ST

CANDLEWOOD    ST

HA
YT

ER
  A

VE

HOLMES
ELEMENTARY

SCHOOL

43
00

HARVEY  WAY

43
00

HARVEY WAY HARVEY  WAY

43
00

59005800

43
00

CA
RF

AX
  A

VE

HARVEY  WAY
6900

43
006700

420
0

RE
DL

INE
  D

R

41
00

2400 2700

41
00

41
00

ANN ARBOR  RD

4 1
00

5500 5900 6400

41
00

207TH  ST

20
70

0

49
00

KN
OX

VIL
LE

  A
VE

IANITA  ST

GLORYWHITE  ST

6400

TURNERGROVE  DR

SE
NAS

AC
  AVE

CHES
TE

ROAR
K  D

R

CHESTEROARK 

MC KNIGHT  DR

FAUST  AVE

SILVA  ST

ECKLESON  ST

EBERLE  ST

YEARLING  ST

6100

CAPETOWN  ST

KIR
TL

AN
D 

 A
VE

KE
TT

LE
R 

 AV
E

52
00

BIXBY  RD

39
00

2000

39
00

36TH  ST2000

2400

DENMEAD  ST

2000

LOOMIS  ST

2700

GREENTOP  ST2700

42
00 GREENMEADOW  RD

2400

3000

BONNER 

OB
ISP

O 
 A

VE

3100

OP
ISP

O  
AV

E

3100

3300

3200

BOUTON  DR

3900

HA
YT

ER
  A

VE
60

00

3800

54
00

3900

FANWOOD  AVE

YEARLING  ST

DASHWOOD  ST

JE
RS

EY
  A

VE FL
AL

LO
N 

 A
VE

AL
BU

RT
IS 

 AV
E

CO
RB

Y  
AV

E

RO
SS

FO
RD

LAMAR 

SA
MA

NT
HA

  A
VE

ES
QU

IVE
L  

AV
E

WA
GN

ER
  A

VE

PIE
RC

Y 
 AV

E

WALDIE 

OB
ISP

O 
 

3200

58
00

ANDY  ST

CO
KE

  A
VE

CANDOR  ST

57
00

3900 4100

47
00

3900

HA
YT

ER
  A

VE

47
00

ARBOR  RD

4200

39003600

4700

4900

5900

5900

EBERLE  ST
6400

DILLMAN  ST

HA
CK

ET
T  

AV
E

52
00

53
00

JO
SIE

CL
UB

HO
US

E 
 D

R

21
00

0

MICHELSON  ST

HUNGERFORD  ST

ARABELLA  ST

ANDY  ST

PE
PP

ER
WO

OD
  A

VE

BIGELOW  ST

MICHELSON  ST

OC
AN

A  
AV

E

AD
EN

MO
OR

  A
VE

BR
IER

CR
ES

T  
AV

E

DU
NR

OB
IN

  A
VE

CO
LD

BR
OO

K A
VE

55
00

WOLFE  ST

ANDY  ST

AD
EN

MO
OR

ROCKET  ST

ROCKET  ST

6600

50
00

NIXON  ST

RA
CH

EL
  A

VE

470
0

6700

PAULA  ST

4400

430
0

BOMBERRY  ST

COUNTRY CLUB  DR

ALLRED  ST

HARDWICK  ST

ALTERNATIVE
EDUCATION

CENTERDO
W

NE
Y 

   A
VE

CL
AR

K 
   A

VE

WH
ITE

WO
OD

  A
VE

LINDSTROM
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

MAYFAIR
HIGH SCHOOL

SOUTH    ST

BE
LL

FL
OW

ER
    

BL
VD

TANGLEWOOD  ST

CENTRALIA  ST

BE
LL

FL
OW

ER
    

BL
VD

PA
LO

 V
ER

DE
    

AV
E

LO
S COYOTE

S
DIAGONAL

LO
S COYO

TE
S BLVD

AR
LIN

E 
 AV

E

RO
SS

FO
RD

  A
VE

NO
RW

AL
K 

   B
LV

D

207TH  ST

BL
OO

MF
IE

LD
    

AV
E

RILEY
ELEMENTARY

SCHOOL

CL
AR

K 
   A

VEINTENSIVE
LEARNING
CENTER

CARSON    ST

GOMPERS
ELEMENTARY

SCHOOL
DASHWOOD  

MAC ARTHUR
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

12400

56
00

ARABELLA  ST

FA
NW

OO
D 

 A
VE

59
00

MICHELSON

BIGELOW  

WOLFE  

BIGELOW  ST

6600

IR
OQ

UO
IS 

 AV
E STEVELY  AVE

6600

WOLFE  ST

MICHELSON  ST

WOLFE  ST

BIGELOW  ST

56
00

WOLFE  ST

BIGELOW  ST

MICHELSON  

DROXFORD  ST

EDGEFIELD  ST

CHARLWOOD  ST

PA
LO

 V
ER

DE
    

AV
E

SN
OW

DE
N 

 AV
E

HUNGERFORD  ST

BA
LF

ER
N 

 AV
E

ARABELLA  ST

SP
AH

N 
 A

VE

FA
US

T  
AV

E

MAE BOYAR
PARK

DEL AMO    BLVD

STILLMAN  ST

RYNERSON
PARK

CARSON    ST

MONTE 
     VERDE

          PARK

ALOHA
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

PALMS
ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

DROXFORD  ST

EDGEFIELD  ST

CHARLWOOD  ST

SP
AHN 

ANDY  ST

SP
AH

N 

MAPLELEAF  

CA
NE

HI
LL

  A
VE

ASHWORTH  ST

3900

CA
ST

AN
A 

 AV
E

OL
IVA

  A
VE

PIM
EN

TA
  A

VE

FID
LE

R 
 AV

E

PR
EM

IER
E 

 AV
E

PE
AR

CE
  A

VE

LO
RE

LE
I  A

VE

BL
AC

KT
HO

RN
E  

AV
E

HA
ZE

LB
RO

OK
  A

VE

GR
AY

WO
OD

  A
VE

FA
CU

LT
Y  

AV
E

PE
NN

SW
OO

D 
 AV

E

WH
ITE

WO
OD

  A
VE

62
00

PONDEROSA

LA JARA

ALLINGTON

SU
NF

IE
LD

LA JARA 

AD
EN

MO
OR

  A
VE

AU
TR

Y  
AV

E

61
00

BR
IER

CR
ES

T  
AV

E

CO
LD

BR
OO

K  
AV

E

DU
NR

OB
IN

  A
VE

EA
ST

BR
OO

K 
 AV

E

5700

60
00

61
00

FA
NW

OO
D 

  A
VE

HE
RS

HO
LT

  A
VE

BE
LL

FL
OW

ER
    

BL
VD

62
00

WO
OD

RU
FF

    
AV

E

LA JARA  ST

60
00

FA
US

T  
AV

E

ASHWORTH 

CA
RP

IN
TE

RO
  A

VE

62
00

55
00

58
00

ADENMOOR

CRAIG
WILLIAMS

ELEMENTARY 
SCHOOL

FOSTER
ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL

LA
KE

W
OO

D 
   B

LV
D

58
00

CAMERINO  ST

MICHELSON  ST

SAINT PANCRATIUS PAROCHIAL 
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

LAKEWOOD COUNTRY CLUB

PLANT 
#13

BUENA VISTA
HIGH SCHOOL

GORDON

AVE

PL

GORDON

45

2
3

1

COMMUNITY
GARDENS

CITY HALL

THE CENTRE

CITY COUNCIL

IACOBONI
LIBRARY

AC
AC

IA 
 LN

SAGE  PL

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-1 O-S
R-A

O-S

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-A

O-S

R-
1

R-1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

O-S

R-A R-AC-1 C-1

C-
1

C-
1R-

1

C-1 C-1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-1

R-1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1R-1

R-
1

R-1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1R-

1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1R-

1

R-
1

R-
A

R-
A

O-
S

O-
S

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-1

R-1

R-
1

R-
1

R-1

R-
1

R-1
R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1R-1

R-1R-1

R-1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

C-
1 MF

R
MF

R

MFR
MFRMFR

MFR
MFR

C-3C-3

C-3C-3

C-3

C-3 C-3

C-3

MFR

C-
1

MFR

MF
R

MF
R

MF
R

MF
R

O-S

MFR

C-4

C-4

C-4C-
4

O-
S

O-
S

O-S

C-1

PD
SF

MF
R

O-S

C-3

MFR C-4
C-4 C-1

M-1
O-S

R-1

PDSF

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1 R-

1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

O-S

O-S
O-S R-

1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-1 R-1 R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1 MFR C-4 C-4

C-4

O-S

C-3 C-4 C-4

MFR

C-4

C-4 C-1

C-3 C-3

C-3

C-3 C-3

C-3 C-3

R-1R-1R-1
C-

3

C-3

C-3
O-S

M-1

R-1

R-1
R-1

R-1
MFR

MF
R

MF
R

MF
R

MF
R MFR

C-4

C-4

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1 R-

1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1 R-1

R-1

R-1
R-1

R-1

R-
1

R-
1

O-S

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

O-S

R-1

R-1 R-1 R-1
R-1O-S

O-S

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1R-1

R-1

R-1
R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1
R-1R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1 R-1R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1
R-1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

O-S

C-3

C-3

C-3 C-3

C-3

O-S O-S R-
1

R-
1

R-
1 R-

1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

O-S O-S

R-1

O-S

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1
R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-1
O-S

R-1

R-1
R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1R-1

PDSF

R-
1R-

1
R-

1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1
R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1
R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

O-S

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

O-S

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-
1 R-

1

R-1

R-
1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-
1

O-S

O-S

R-1
R-1

R-1

R-1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

O-S O-S O-S

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

C-4C-4
C-1 C-3R-1 7500

R-1 1
500

0

R-1

R-1

R-1 R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1 7500

R-1

R-1 7500

O-S

O-S
R-1 7500

R-1 7500

R-1 7500

R-
1 7

50
0

R-
1 7

50
0

R-1 15000

R-1 15000

R-1 15000

R-
1 7

50
0

R-
1 7

50
0

R-1 7500

R-
1 7

50
0

MF
R

MF
R

MF
R

MF
R

MF
R

MF
R

MFR R-1
15000

R-
1 1

50
00

R-1 7500
R-1 7500

R-1 7500

R-1 7500

R-1 7500

R-1 7500

O-S

M-1

M-2

M-2

M-2

M-2

M-2

M-2

M-1

R-
1

R-
1

R-1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-1

R-1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-1 R-1 R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-
1 O-S

O-S

O-S

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1R-

1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-1

R-1

O-S

R-
1

R-1

R-1

O-S

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1
R-1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-1

O-S

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-1

R-1

R-
1 R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

C-3

C-3

C-3

R-1

R-1

A

C-4 R-
1

C-4

PDSF

C-1

C-1

C-1

C-1 C-3

O-S

A MFR

C-4 C-4 C-4
MFR MFR

C-4

MFR

PDMF

MFR

MFR

MFR

MFR

MFR

MFR

MFR

MFR

MFR

MFR

MFR

MFR

MFR

MFR

MFR

MF
R

MF
R

MFR

C-
3

C-3C-
3

C-3

MFR MFR MFR MFR

MFR MFR MFRMF
R

MF
R

MF
R

MF
R

MF
R

C-4

C-4

C-
3

PDMF
MFR

MFR

MFR

MFR

MF
R

C-3

C-3 C-3

O-S O-S

O-S
O-S O-

S
O-

S

MHP

C-
1

O-S

MH
P

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-
1

R-1

R-1
R-1

R-1
R-1

R-1
R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-
1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1
R-1

R-1

R-1R-1R-1

R-1 R-1

R-
1

R-1
R-1

R-1

R-1
R-1 R-1

R-1

R-1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

C-1

R-1

R-
1 R-

1 R-
1 R-

1 R-
1

R-
1

PDSF

R-1

R-1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-1

R-1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-1

R-
1

R-
1R-

1
R-

1

R-1

R-1 R-1

R-
1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-
1

R-
1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1R-1

R-
1

R-1

R-1

R-1

R-1

PDSF
R-1

R-
1

R-
1

R-
1

R-1

R-1

R-1
R-1

R-1

R-1
R-1

R-1

R-1

MF
R

O-S

O-S

O-
S

O-S

R-
1

C-4

MFR

MFR

O-
S

O-SO-
S

MFR

PDMF

01/2016

City of Lakewood
Zoning Designations

0 1 20.5
Miles

¹

Mobile Home Park (MHP)

Multiple Family (MFR) or Planned Development
Residential (PDMF)

Single Family (R-1) or Planned Development
Residential (PDSF)
Single Family Residential Limited Agriculture (R-A)

Zoning Designations
Neighborhood Commercial (C-1)

General Commercial (C-4)
Light Manufacturing (M-1)
Heavy Manufacturing (M-2)

Intermediate Commercial (C-3)
Agriculture (A)
Open Space Land (O-S)



 ORDINANCE NO. 2018-6 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LAKEWOOD AMENDING THE LAKEWOOD MUNICIPAL 
CODE AND THE ZONING ORDINANCE REGARDING THE 
LOCATION, DESIGN AND OPERATION OF COMMERCIAL 
CARWASHES. 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD DOES ORDAIN AS 

FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1. PURPOSE.  The purpose of this Ordinance is to establish additional 
locational criteria, development standards, and operational guidelines pertaining to commercial 
carwashes.  Recently during consideration and review of proposed commercial carwashes, 
concerns have raised regarding the adequacy of carwash regulations pertaining to operational noise 
and traffic generation in close proximity to residential areas.   

This Ordinance will allow new carwashes to be established only in the C-4, M-1, and M-2 
zones and will no longer allow them to be established in the C-1 or C-3 zones.  This applies to all 
types of carwashes including self-serve, full service, hand wash, detailing and those constructed 
in conjunction with a service station. 

Any carwash that was approved prior to, and that approval was still valid on the effective 
date of this Ordinance, shall remain as a fully authorized land use.  These existing carwashes shall 
be allowed to submit amendments to the previously approved conditional use permit to allow 
modifications that will be subject to the review and discretion of the Planning and Environment 
Commission.  This Ordinance establishes standards for parking spaces at a new carwash facility. 

 
SECTION 2. Section 9340. Uses Permitted of Part 4 C-1 (Neighborhood Commercial) 

Zone Regulations of Chapter 3 Zoning of Article IX of the Lakewood Municipal Code, Subsection 
9340.C.2. (c). (7), regarding standards for Service Stations allowing hand washing of automobiles 
is hereby deleted. 

 
SECTION 3. Subsection 9341. B Limitations of Uses Permitted of Part 4 C-1 

(Neighborhood Commercial) Zone Regulations of Chapter 3 Zoning of Article IX of the Lakewood 
Municipal Code, is amended to read as follows: 

 
B. All uses shall be conducted wholly within a building except a plant nursery, gasoline, 
oil or petroleum product pumps, newsstand, outdoor advertising, commercial parking lots, 
vehicular parking and loading spaces, outdoor accessory uses, displays, and storage, which 
are normal and incidental to the primary permitted commercial use, where otherwise 
allowed or authorized by this Part.  No required vehicle storage space or landscaped area 
shall be devoted to outdoor displays or storage.  

 
  



Ordinance No. 2018-6 
Commercial Carwash Ordinance 
Page 2 
 

SECTION 4. Section 9341.J. Service Stations of Part 4 C-1 (Neighborhood Commercial) 
Zone Regulations of Chapter 3 Zoning of Article IX of the Lakewood Municipal Code, Subsection 
9341.J.6, regarding automobile washing is hereby deleted. 

 
SECTION 5. Section 9347. Uses Permitted of Part 4a C-3 (Intermediate Commercial) 

Zone Regulations of Chapter 3 Zoning of Article IX of the Lakewood Municipal Code, Subsection 
9347.D.11, is amended to read as follows: 
 

D. USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT.  The following 
uses are permitted provided that in each instance a conditional use permit has been obtained and 
continues in full force and effect: 
… 

11. Commercial Carwash.  Any commercial carwash that was approved with a 
conditional use permit prior to and that was valid on the effective date of this Ordinance, 
shall remain as a fully authorized land use.  A valid previously approved carwash shall not 
be subject to Part 9 of Article IX of the Lakewood Municipal Code, commencing with 
Section 9390, relating to Nonconforming Buildings and Uses.  A valid previously approved 
carwash shall be allowed to submit amendments to the approved conditional use permit to 
modify the previously approved carwash, subject to the review and discretion of the 
Planning and Environment Commission.  The review of any proposed revised design shall 
consider and mitigate any identified impacts to adjacent properties, including those from 
noise, light, glare, vibration, parking, circulation and appropriate stacking distance for 
access lanes. 

 No new carwash facility offering hand and/or mechanical washing shall be 
approved in the C-3 zone at any time following the effective date of this section.  This 
prohibition includes any self-serve or full-service commercial washing, detailing, waxing, 
or cleaning of vehicles.   

 
SECTION 6. Section 9350. Uses Permitted of Part 5 C-4 (General Commercial) Zone 

Regulations of Chapter 3 Zoning of Article IX of the Lakewood Municipal Code is amended by 
adding Subsection 9350.B.13, to read as follows: 

 
B. USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT. The 

following uses are permitted provided that in each instance a conditional use permit has been 
obtained and continues in full force and effect: 

… 
13. Commercial Carwash.  Any self-service or full-service permanent facility offering 
hand and/or mechanical car washing, which includes detailing, waxing, and/or cleaning of 
vehicles.  Carwash facilities may include outdoor vacuums, vacuum stations, and other 
outdoor equipment and activities normally associated with a carwash.  Other activities and 
uses may co-locate with a carwash as deemed acceptable by the Planning and Environment 
Commission. The review of any proposed design shall consider and mitigate any identified 
impacts to adjacent properties, including those from noise, light, glare, vibration, parking, 
circulation and appropriate stacking distance for access lanes. 



Ordinance No. 2018-6 
Commercial Carwash Ordinance 
Page 3 
 

Any commercial carwash that was approved with a conditional use permit prior to 
and that was valid on the effective date of this Ordinance shall remain as a fully authorized 
land use.  Any proposed modification to such a previously approved carwash shall be 
subject to the provisions listed in Subsection 9347.D.11. 
 

SECTION 7. Section 9490. E.2. of Part 19, Chapter 3 of Article IX of the Lakewood 
Municipal Code regarding Off-street Parking Requirements is added to read as follows: 
… 

E.2 Commercial Carwash.  A commercial carwash shall provide parking spaces as 
follows:  

1. A minimum of three (3) parking spaces shall be provided for a self-serve 
carwash, which is a carwash where the customer stays in the vehicle during a 
mechanical wash. 

2. A minimum of ten (10) spaces shall be provided for a full-serve carwash, which 
is a carwash where the employees either wash, vacuum and/or hand dry the 
vehicle.  This requirement applies to carwash facilities that offer a combination 
of both self-serve and full-serve carwash services.  

3. One (1) space for each employee on the largest shift.   
4. One (1) space for each 250 square feet of gross floor area devoted to office 

and/or retail land uses  
5. Vacuum and detailing stations shall not be counted or used in any manner to 

satisfy these parking requirements.  
 
SECTION 8. CEQA. This Ordinance is exempt from the California Environmental Quality 

Act (CEQA) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3) which is the general rule that 
CEQA applies only to projects which have the potential for causing a significant effect on the 
environment.  CEQA does not apply where it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility 
that the activity may have a significant effect on the environment.  This Ordinance has no impact 
on the physical environment as it will only modify administrative procedures and not result in any 
changes to the physical environment. 

 
SECTION 9.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, 

phrase or portion of this Ordinance, is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the 
decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this Ordinance.  The City Council hereby declares that it would have adopted 
this Ordinance and each section, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion 
thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, subdivisions, sentences, 
clauses, phrases, or portions thereof be declared invalid or unconstitutional. 
 

SECTION 10.  CONTINUITY. To the extent the provisions of the Lakewood Municipal 
Code as amended by this Ordinance are substantially the same as the provisions of that Code as 
they read immediately prior to the adoption of this Ordinance, then those provisions shall be 
construed as continuations of the earlier provisions and not as new enactments.   
 



Ordinance No. 2018-6 
Commercial Carwash Ordinance 
Page 4 
 

SECTION 11.  CERTIFICATION. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this 
Ordinance and shall post a certified copy of this Ordinance, including the vote for and against 
same, in the Office of the City Clerk, in accordance with Government Code Section 36933.  The 
City Council hereby finds and determines there are no newspapers of general circulation both 
published and circulated within the City and, in compliance with Section 36933 of the Government 
Code, directs the City Clerk to cause the ordinance within 15 days after its passage to be posted in 
at least three (3) public places within the City as established by Ordinance. 
 

SECTION 12. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Ordinance shall be posted or published as 
required by law and shall take effect thirty (30) days after its adoption. 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this ______ day of ____________, 2018, by the following 
roll call vote: 
 
  AYES  NAYS ABSENT 
Council Member Piazza       
Council Member DuBois       
Council Member Rogers       
Council Member Wood       
Mayor Croft       
 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
City Clerk 
 





1.2 

 COUNCIL AGENDA 
 September 25, 2018 
 
 
 
TO:  Honorable Mayor and members of the City Council 
 
SUBJECT: Proposed ordinance to establish standards for short-term rentals of residential 

properties and requiring a business license and transient occupancy tax for such 
short-term rentals. 

  
INTRODUCTION  
The purpose of this ordinance is to create regulations that ban short-term whole home rentals 
for less than thirty (30) days and to continue to allow long-term whole home rentals for thirty 
(30) days or more.  Furthermore, the ordinance will allow both the short-term home-share 
rentals of individual rooms for less than thirty (30) days within existing owner-occupied 
dwelling units, located within any residential zoning district and to continue to allow long-
term rental of home-share rooms.  All dwelling units used for home-share rentals shall be in 
full compliance with all adopted building codes and all provisions of the Lakewood Municipal 
Code.  Furthermore, it is the purpose of this ordinance to create a system by which a business 
license and Transient Occupancy Tax is required and collected for such short-term home-share 
rentals. 
 
STATEMENT OF FACTS  
This Ordinance will ban the short-term rental of whole homes and regulate the short-term rental 
of rooms within an owner occupied home.  This ordinance establishes a business license and 
applies the adopted Transient Occupancy Tax to home share room rentals, as they are similar to 
hotel/motel room rentals. The proposed Ordinance creates standards for short-term rentals of 
rooms within an owner occupied home as follows: 

 No whole home rentals for less than thirty (30) days. 
 No rentals of Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU’s) for less than thirty (30) days. 
 Dwellings used for home-share rentals shall be occupied by the property owner. 
 Parking for guests shall be provided on site.  There shall be no parking on the public 

right of way by the guests.  The property owner may park on the street. 
 The home-share rental guests shall register with the property owner. 

 
CEQA 
The proposed ordinance is exempt from CEQA pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 
15061(b)(3), which is the general rule that CEQA applies only to projects which have the potential 
for causing a significant effect on the environment and CEQA does not apply where it can be seen 
with certainty that there is no possibility that the activity may have a significant effect on the 
environment.  This ordinance has no impact on the physical environment as it will only modify 
administrative procedures and not result in any changes to the physical environment. 



Proposed Ordinance – Short-Term Rentals 
September 25, 2018 
Page 2 
 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
Pursuant to Section 9422 of the Lakewood Municipal Code and State Law, notice of the public 
hearing for this amendment was posted on the City’s webpage on September 14, 2018 posted in 
three public places on and published in the Press Telegram on September 14,, 2018 pursuant to 
Section 9422, et seq., of the Lakewood Municipal Code and State Law. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On September 6, 2018, the Planning and Environment Commission adopted Resolution 28-2018 
recommending that the City Council adopt the proposed ordinance.  Staff recommends that the 
City Council introduce the proposed ordinance and adopt the related Categorical Exemption. 
 
 
Sonia Dias Southwell, AICP     Thaddeus McCormack 
Director of Community Development  City Manager 
 







 ORDINANCE NO. 2018-7 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LAKEWOOD AMENDING ARTICLE VI AND IX OF THE 
LAKEWOOD MUNICIPAL CODE PERTAINING TO 
STANDARDS FOR SHORT-TERM RENTALS OF 
RESIDENTIAL PROPERTIES AND REQUIRING A BUSINESS 
LICENSE AND TRANSIENT OCCUPANCY TAX FOR SUCH 
SHORT-TERM RENTALS. 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD DOES ORDAIN AS 

FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1. PURPOSE.  The purpose of this ordinance is to create regulations that ban 
short-term whole home rentals for less than thirty (30) days and to continue to allow long-
term whole home rentals for thirty (30) days or more.  Furthermore, the ordinance will allow 
both the short-term home-share rentals of individual rooms for less than thirty (30) days within 
existing owner-occupied dwelling units, located within any residential zoning district and to 
continue to allow long-term rental of home-share rooms.  All dwelling units used for home-
share rentals shall be in full compliance with all adopted building codes and all provisions of the 
Lakewood Municipal Code.  Furthermore, it is the purpose of this ordinance to create a system by 
which a business license and Transient Occupancy Tax is required and collected for such short-
term home-share rentals. 

 
SECTION 2. Chapter 9 of Title VI of the Lakewood Municipal Code, regarding Transient 

Occupancy Taxes is amended to read as follows: 
 

CHAPTER 9  
TRANSIENT OCCUPANCY TAXES 

 
6901. TITLE. This Chapter shall be known as the Uniform Occupancy Tax Ordinance of 
the City of Lakewood.  
6902. DEFINITIONS. Except where the context otherwise requires, the definitions given 
in this section govern the construction of this Chapter: 

A. PERSON. "Person" means any individual, firm, partnership, joint venture, 
association, social club, fraternal organization, joint stock company, corporation, 
estate, trust, business trust, receiver, trustee, syndicate, or any other group or 
combination acting as a unit. 
B. HOTEL. "Hotel" means any structure, or any portion of any structure, which 
is occupied or intended or designed for occupancy by transients for dwelling, lodging 
or sleeping purposes, and includes any hotel, inn, tourist home or house, motel, studio 
hotel, bachelor hotel, lodging house, rooming house, apartment house, dormitory, 
public or private club, or other similar structures or portion thereof providing 
lodging.  



Ordinance No. 2018-7 
Short-Term Rental Ordinance 
Page 2 
 

C. OCCUPANCY. "Occupancy" means the use or possession, or the right to the use 
or possession of any room or rooms or portion thereof, in any hotel or home-share 
rental for dwelling, lodging or sleeping purposes. 
D. TRANSIENT. "Transient" means any person who exercises occupancy or is 
entitled to occupancy by reason of concession, permit, right of access, license or other 
agreement for a period of time less than thirty (30) consecutive calendar days, 
counting portions of calendar days as full days. Any such person so occupying space 
in a hotel or home-share rental shall be deemed to be a transient until the period of 
thirty (30) days has expired, unless there is an agreement in writing between the 
operator and the occupant providing for a longer period of occupancy. 
E. RENT. "Rent" means the consideration charged, whether or not received, for the 
occupancy of space in a hotel or home-share rental valued in money, whether to be 
received in money, goods, labor or otherwise, including all receipts, cash, credits and 
property and services of any kind or nature, without any deduction therefrom 
whatsoever. 
F. OPERATOR. "Operator" means the person who is proprietor of the hotel or the 
property owner of an owner-occupied dwelling unit with a home-share rental, 
whether in the capacity of owner, lessee, sublessee, mortgagee in possession, licensee, 
or any other capacity. Where the operator performs his functions through a managing 
agent of any type or character other than an employee, the managing agent shall also 
be deemed an operator for the purpose of this ordinance and shall have the same 
duties and liabilities as his principal. Compliance with the provisions of this Chapter 
by either the principal or the managing agent shall, however, be considered to be 
compliance by both. 
G. TAX ADMINISTRATOR. "Tax Administrator" means the Director of Finance. 
H. WHOLE HOME RENTAL.  “Whole Home Rental” means the rental, host, 
lease, or use of an entire residential dwelling unit.  
I. HOME-SHARE RENTAL.  “Home-Share Rental” means the rental of one or more 
rooms within an owner-occupied residential dwelling unit.  The residential dwelling unit 
owner rents, leases, or hosts any individual or individuals in their privately-owned 
dwelling unit, for compensation,  
 

6903. TAX IMPOSED. For the privilege of occupancy in any hotel or home-share rental 
(short-term), each transient is subject to and shall pay a tax in the amount of a percentage of 
the rent charged by the operation at the rate of eight percent (8%).  The tax constitutes a debt 
owed by the transient to the City of Lakewood on retail sales. The tax constitutes a debt owed 
by the transient to the City which is extinguished only by payment to the operator or to the 
City. The transient shall pay the tax to the operator of the hotel or home-share rental (short-
term) at the time the rent is paid. If the rent is paid in installments, a proportionate share of 
the tax shall be paid with each installment. The unpaid tax shall be due upon the transient's 
ceasing to occupy space in the hotel or home-share rental (short-term).  If for any reason the 
tax due is not paid to the operator of the hotel, the Tax Administrator may require that such 
tax shall be paid directly to the Tax Administrator.  
 
6904. EXEMPTIONS. No tax shall be imposed upon: 



Ordinance No. 2018-7 
Short-Term Rental Ordinance 
Page 3 
 

A. Any person as to whom, or any occupancy as to which, it is beyond the power of 
the City to impose the tax herein provided. 
B. Any officer or employee of a foreign government, who is exempt by reason of 
express provision of federal law or international treaty. 
C. No exemption shall be granted except upon a claim therefor made at the time 
rent is collected and under penalty of perjury upon a form prescribed by the Tax 
Administrator. 
 

6905. OPERATOR'S DUTIES.  Each operator shall collect the tax imposed by this 
Chapter to the same extent and at the same time as the rent is collected from every transient. 
The amount of tax shall be separately stated from the amount of the rent charged, and each 
transient shall receive a receipt for payment from the operator. No operator of a hotel or 
home-share rental (short-term) shall advertise or state in any manner, whether directly or 
indirectly, that the tax or any part thereof will be assumed or absorbed by the operator, or 
that it will not be added to the rent, or that, if added, any part will be refunded except in the 
manner hereinafter provided. 
 
6906. REGISTRATION. Within thirty (30) days after the effective date of the ordinance 
adopting this Chapter, or within thirty (30) days after commencing business, whichever is 
later, each operator of any hotel or home-share rental (short-term) renting occupancy to 
transients shall register the hotel or home-share rental (short-term) with the Tax 
Administrator and obtain from them a "Transient Occupancy Registration Certificate" to be at 
all times posted in a conspicuous place on the premises. The certificate shall, among other 
things, state the following: 

A. The name of the operator; 
B. The address of the hotel or home-share rental (short-term); 
C. The date upon which the certificate was issued. 
D. "This Transient Occupancy Registration Certificate signifies that the person 
named on the face hereof has fulfilled the requirements of the Uniform Transient 
Occupancy Tax Ordinance by registering with the Tax Administrator for the 
purpose of collecting from transients the Transient Occupancy Tax and remitting the 
tax to the Tax Administrator. This certificate does not authorize any person to conduct 
any unlawful business or to conduct any lawful business in an unlawful manner, nor to 
operate a hotel or home-share rental (short-term) without strictly complying with all 
local applicable laws, including the zoning laws and including, but not limited to, 
those requiring a permit from any board, commission, department or office of this 
City. This certificate does not constitute a permit." 

… 
 

6915. GUEST REGISTRATION. 
A. Every operator, manager or person in control of any hotel or home-share rental 
(short-term) in the City shall keep a register for the registration of transient guests. 
The guest register shall at all times be open and subject to reasonable inspection by 
City officials or by any law enforcement officer in the City. 

 



Ordinance No. 2018-7 
Short-Term Rental Ordinance 
Page 4 
 

B. GUESTS MUST REGISTER.  No operator, manager or person in control of any 
hotel or home-share rental (short-term), in the City shall let or assign for temporary 
or transient occupancy any suite, room or bed in that hotel or home-share rental 
(short-term), to any person until after such person has registered their name and 
address in the register herein provided to be kept, and thereafter such register shall be 
made to show correctly the year, month, day and hour of the arrival of such person 
at the hotel or home-share rental (short-term) and the number of the suite or room let 
or assigned to such guest; and such person in control of such hotel or home-share 
rental (short-term) or the letting of any suite, room or bed therein shall at the time of 
the departure of each guest, endorse upon such register the date of such departure, 
nor shall any person erase or alter any name or address written in such register. 

 
1. REGISTRATION INFORMATION REQUIRED. The operator of any hotel 
or home-share rental (short-term) shall keep a register, on forms approved by or 
supplied by the City, of the names and home or business addresses of all persons to 
be accommodated with the length of stay indicated. At the time of registration, 
the operator or their employee shall verify the identification of the registrant by 
requesting to see, and copying onto the registration form any of the following from 
the registrant and issued in the registrants name: a valid driver's license number, a 
valid state-issued identification number, a valid military identification, a valid 
passport number and country of issuance, a valid credit card number, and/or a 
credit card verification of a credit card issued in the registrant's name. The 
operator or their employee must also include on the registration forms, where 
applicable, the make, type and license number of the registrant's automobile, trailer 
or other vehicle, and the state in which such vehicle is registered and the year of 
registration, for any vehicle that is parked on the premises. Hotels or home 
shares that can demonstrate that they take sufficient reasonable steps to control 
access to and from parking areas on the premises shall not be required to include 
this information on registration forms. Such sufficient reasonable steps to 
control access to and from parking areas shall include, but not be limited to, 
valet parking, automated access gates, and parking attendants. 
 
2. PRE-ARRIVAL REGISTRATION. In the event that the hotel or home-share 
rental (short-term) utilizes a pre-arrival registration or approval procedure that 
obviates the requirement for an arriving guest to go to the front desk and 
provide information typically required as part of the hotel's customary registration 
process, the hotel or home-share rental (short-term) shall not be required to comply 
with subsection C of this section; provided, however, that the hotel's or home-share 
rental (short-term) pre-arrival registration or approval procedure must be 
submitted to and approved by the City Manager or their designee, and the facility 
must obtain such guest- related information of the type specified in subsection C 
as the City Manager or their designee might reasonably require. 
 
3. ILLEGAL REGISTRATION. No person shall register at any hotel or home-
share rental (short-term) in the City, under the name of any other person, or by any 



Ordinance No. 2018-7 
Short-Term Rental Ordinance 
Page 5 
 

assumed, false or fictitious name. No person placing any information required by 
this section shall falsely or inaccurately state such information. 

 
SECTION 3. Subsection 6527.2.E of Title VI of the Lakewood Municipal Code, 

regarding tax rates for rentals is amended to read as follows: 
 
E. RENTALS.  Any person conducting, managing or carrying on the business consisting 
mainly of leasing or renting of: 1) one or more rooms within a home-share rental (short-
term); 2) apartment units, 3) business rentals: or 4) rooms or suites in any apartment house, 
multiple dwelling, office building, guest or boarding home, hotel or motel will be classified 
in this category and shall pay the following business tax:  

1.  Hotels, Motels and Home-Share Rentals (short-term only) 
Up to 8 rooms or units      $40.00 (a) 
Each additional room or unit      $ 3.50 (a) 

2.  Boarding House, Rooming Houses, Multiple Dwellings,  
and Business Rentals  
Up to 4 rooms or units      $ 33.00 (a) 
Each additional room or unit         $   3.50 (a) 

3.  Trailer Parks, Mobile Homes, Mobile Home Parks  
Up to 10 spaces       $   67.00 (a) 
Each additional space      $     5.00 (a) 
Maximum Tax       $ 670.00 (a) 

  (Note: (a) means annually each fiscal year.)  
 

SECTION 4. Subsection 9320.F of Title IX of the Lakewood Municipal Code, regarding 
uses allowed in the Single-Family Residential Zone District is amended to read as follows: 

… 
F. RENTALS. 

1. LONG-TERM RENTAL (30 days or more).  
(a) Whole Home Rental.  An entire dwelling unit may only be rented for periods 

of time that are thirty (30) days or more. 
(b) Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) Rental. An Accessory Dwelling Unit may 

only be rented for periods of time that are thirty (30) days or more and either 
the primary dwelling unit or the ADU shall be occupied by the property owner. 

(c)  Home-Share Rental (long-term). The renting of not more than two rooms to 
not more than two roomers, or the providing of table board to not more than 
two boarders or both, in a single-family residence may only be rented for 
periods of time that are thirty (30) days or more. 

2. SHORT-TERM RENTAL (less than 30 days).   
(a) Home-Share Rental (short-term). These rentals are allowed for periods of time 

less than thirty (30) consecutive calendar days and for no more than a 
collective maximum total of ninety (90) rental days and/or nights in any 
calendar year, subject to the following: 
1) The dwelling unit shall be owner occupied. 



Ordinance No. 2018-7 
Short-Term Rental Ordinance 
Page 6 
 

2) The dwelling unit shall fully comply with all building codes and all 
provisions of the Lakewood Municipal Code. 

3) Parking for all guest vehicles shall be provide on-site.  There shall be no 
guest vehicles parked on the public right-of-way. In the case of multiple 
room rentals to separate parties, one parking space per rented room shall 
be provided. 

 
SECTION 5. Subsection 9326. E. of Title IX of the Lakewood Municipal Code, regarding 

uses allowed in the RA (Single-Family Residential – Limited Agricultural) zone is amended to 
read as follows: 

 
E. Rentals.  As specified in Subsection 9320.F of this Title. 

 
SECTION 6. Subsection 9328.1.L. of Title IX of the Lakewood Municipal Code, 

regarding uses allowed in the MHP (Mobilehome Park) zone is added to read as follows: 
 

L. Rentals.  As specified in Subsection 9320.F of this Title. 
 

SECTION 7. Subsection 9331.H. of Title IX of the Lakewood Municipal Code, regarding 
uses allowed in the M-F-R (Multiple-Family Residential) zone is added to read as follows: 

 
H. Rentals. As specified in Subsection 9320.F of this Title. 

 
SECTION 8. CEQA. This ordinance is exempt from the California Environmental Quality 

Act (CEQA) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3) which is the general rule that 
CEQA applies only to projects which have the potential for causing a significant effect on the 
environment and CEQA does not apply where it can be seen with certainty that there is no 
possibility that the activity may have a significant effect on the environment.  This ordinance has 
no impact on the physical environment as it will only modify administrative procedures and not 
result in any changes to the physical environment. 

 
SECTION 9.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, 

sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this ordinance or its application to any person or 
circumstance, is for any reason held to be invalid, unenforceable or unconstitutional by the 
decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this ordinance or its application to any other person or circumstance. The 
City Council hereby declares that it would have adopted this ordinance and each section, 
subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion thereof, irrespective of the fact that 
any one or more sections, subsections, subdivisions, paragraph, sentences, clauses, phrases, or 
portions thereof be declared invalid, unenforceable or unconstitutional. 
 

SECTION 10.  CONTINUITY. To the extent the provisions of the Lakewood Municipal 
Code as amended by this ordinance are substantially the same as the provisions of that Code as 
they read immediately prior to the adoption of this ordinance, then those provisions shall be 
construed as continuations of the earlier provisions and not as new enactments.   



Ordinance No. 2018-7 
Short-Term Rental Ordinance 
Page 7 
 
 

SECTION 11.  CERTIFICATION. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this 
ordinance and shall post a certified copy of this ordinance, including the vote for and against same, 
in the Office of the City Clerk, in accordance with Government Code Section 36933.  The City 
Council hereby finds and determines there are no newspapers of general circulation both published 
and circulated within the City and, in compliance with Section 36933 of the Government Code, 
directs the City Clerk to cause the ordinance within 15 days after its passage to be posted in at least 
three (3) public places within the City as established by ordinance. 

 
SECTION 12.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Ordinance shall be posted or published as 

required by law and shall take effect thirty (30) days after its adoption. 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this ______ day of ____________, 2018, by the following 
roll call vote: 
 
  AYES  NAYS ABSENT 
Council Member Piazza       
Council Member DuBois       
Council Member Rogers       
Council Member Wood       
Mayor Croft       
 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 





 



2.1 

 COUNCIL AGENDA 
 September 25, 2018 
 
 
 
TO:  Honorable Mayor and members of the City Council 
 
SUBJECT: Proposed ordinance amending the Municipal Code pertaining to 

compensation of members of the City Council  
 
BACKGROUND 
Section 2300.1 of the Lakewood Municipal Code provides that members of the City Council shall 
be compensated for their services in the sum of $1,513.00 per month each, which shall be payable 
on the first day of the month during their term of office. Compensation for City Council Members 
was last fixed by Ordinance No. 2005-7, adopted on the 12th day of July, 2005 and operative 
following the General Municipal Election in March 2007.      
 
Section 36516 of the Government Code provides that the aforementioned compensation may be 
increased beyond the amount provided in said Ordinance by an amendment to the Ordinance. 
Although five, two-year election cycles have occurred since the last compensation increase, no 
increase has been adopted since 2005.  Section 36516 (a) 4 of the Government Code authorizes an 
increase in Council salaries in an amount not to exceed 5% for each calendar year from the 
operative date of the last adjustment. Thus, for example, if a Council has not had a salary increase 
in the last ten years, it could adopt an ordinance effectively increasing its salary by up to 50%: 10 
x 5% = 50%.   That notwithstanding, Ordinance 2018-8, applicable to the Lakewood City Council, 
increases the compensation of City Council Members as follows:    
 
Current rate based on Ord. No. 2005-7  $ 1,513.00 
Calendar years, 2007-2017              5%        $ 1,588.00 
Calendar years, 2018 - 2019            4%        $ 1,649.00* 
  
*Note: The Attorney General has opined that the annual 5% salary increased allowed for in the 
law shall be “non-compounded.”  This means that a salary increase that represents multiple years 
of adjustments may not be calculated on compound basis (e.g. applied to the currently received 
salary amount only for the first year, and then applied to the newly calculated amount for the 
second year, and continuing these separate calculations for each intervening year)  Instead, 
increases comprising adjustments for multiple years should be applied in the aggregate to the base 
salary (i.e., the currently received salary amount).   Accordingly, the totality of the proposed 
increase for Ordinance 2018-8 is 9% (5% plus 4%).  The 9% is calculated in a non-compounded 
manner, effectively increasing the compensation from $1,513.00 to $1,649.00, which is a 9% 
increase from the base pay amount of $1,513. 
 
The Ordinance enclosed is operative November 2018 but the compensation increases will only 
become effective as to Councilmembers holding office after the next General Municipal Election 
in March, 2020.  



Proposed Ordinance – Compensation of Council Members 
September 25, 2018 
Page 2 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the City Council introduce the proposed ordinance and waive further 
reading. 
 
 
Thaddeus McCormack 
City Manager 
 



 ORDINANCE NO. 2018-8 
 
 
  AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

LAKEWOOD AMENDING THE MUNICIPAL CODE 
PERTAINING TO COMPENSATION OF MEMBERS OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1. Section 2300.1 of Chapter 3 of Article II of the Lakewood Municipal Code 
pertaining to the compensation of members of the City Council is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 
 
 "2300.1.  Same.  Compensation for Services.  City Council Members shall be 

compensated for their services to the City in the sum of $1,649.00 per month each, 
which shall be a charge against the City and payable as other salaries on the first 
day of the month following the effective date of the ordinance adopting this 
section, and thereafter payable on the first day of each and every month during said 
term of office." 

 
 SECTION 2. In adopting this Ordinance, the City Council makes the following findings: 
 
 1. The operative date of the last adjustment of the compensation of members of the 

City Council was March, 2005, and no adjustment has been made since that date. 
 
 2. Pursuant to Section 36516(c) of the Government Code of the State of California, 

compensation may be increased by an amount not to exceed five percent (5%) for each 
calendar year from said operative date which results in compensation in the sum of $1,649 
for the calendar year 2020. 

 
 SECTION 3. Pursuant to Section 365l6.5 of the Government Code of the State of 
California, the change in compensation herein specified from $1,513 per month to $1,649 per 
month shall not be operative, and said compensation of $1,649 per month for each Council 
Member shall not commence unless and until one or more members of the City Council become 
eligible for this salary increase by virtue of beginning a new term of office following the adoption 
of this Ordinance.  Until this Ordinance becomes operative, the existing compensation set by 
Section 2300.1 of the Lakewood Municipal Code by Ordinance No. 2005-7 shall remain at 
$1,513 per month.  On the first day of the month following the operative date of this Ordinance, 
the compensation of each member of the City Council shall be $1,649 and shall be paid on the first 
day of each and every month thereafter during said term of office, until said Ordinance is 
otherwise amended. 



Ordinance No. 2018-8 
Page 2 
 
 
 

 SECTION 4. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Ordinance.  The City 
Council hereby finds and determines there are no newspapers of general circulation both published 
and circulated within the City and, in compliance with Section 36933 of the Government Code, 
directs the City Clerk to cause said ordinance within fifteen (15) days after its passage to be 
posted in at least three (3) public places within the City.  This ordinance shall take effect thirty 
(30) days after its adoption. 
 
 ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 9th day of October, 2018, by the following roll call 
vote: 
 
  Ayes  Nays Absent 
 
Council Member Piazza ______ ______ ______ 
Council Member Dubois ______ ______ ______ 
Council Member Wood ______ ______ ______ 
Vice Mayor Rogers ______ ______ ______ 
Mayor Croft ______ ______ ______ 
 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 
 I, JO MAYBERRY, do hereby certify that I am the duly appointed and acting City Clerk 
of the City of Lakewood, and the foregoing ordinance was adopted and approved by the City 
Council of the City of Lakewood voting for and against the ordinance as above set forth at a 
regular meeting thereof on the 9th day of October, 2018. 
 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       City Clerk 
 
 
CODING: Words in struck through type are deletions from existing law; words in underscore 
type are additions. 





 



jmayberr
Typewritten Text
LSA-1







 

 



jmayberr
Typewritten Text
LHSA-1




	25 September 2018 City Council Agenda 
	RI-1, City Council Minutes
	RI-2, Personnel Transactions
	RI-3, Registers of Demands
	RI-4, City Council Committees' Activities
	RI-5, Monthly Report of Investment Transactions
	RI-6, Agreement with Tyler Technologies
	RI-7, Resolution No. 2018-60; Energy Leader Partnership 
	RI-8, Pertaining to Rules and Procedures for City Council Proceedings
	1.1,  Ordinance No. 2018-6; Commercial Carwashes
	1.2, Ordinance No. 2018-7; Short-term Rentals
	2.1, Ordinance No. 2018-8; City Council Compensation
	LSA-1, Register of Demands
	LHSA-1, Register of Demands

	Back to Top: 


